
 
 

 

 

  

 
RICHMOND PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 
 
 
 

LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

September 25, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 

Main Library 
101 E. Franklin Street 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 
804.646.2547 

 
 
 

11:45 a.m. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  



Page 2 of 27 
 

 

 

 
Richmond Public Library 

101 E. Franklin Street 
Richmond, VA 23219 

(804) 646-4256 / fax: (804) 646-7685 

 

 

Library Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, September 25, 2024 

11:45 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A  
 
 

Call to order:   11:45 a.m. Ms. Peterson 
Agenda  Ms. Peterson 
Consent Agenda:  Ms. Peterson 
• Approval of Minutes-July 24, 2024, Regular Meeting  
• Approval of Statistical Report    
• Approval of Pending Deposited Gifts Report  

  
Public Comment Period:     
   
Reports:   
• Library Friends   Ms. DeBoer/Mr. Dishon 
• Library Foundation   Ms. Revere/Mr. Firestine 
• Library Administration  Mr. Firestine 

• Main Library Update by LCSM  Mr. Himmelfarb 
• Chair Report  Ms. Peterson 
• Advocacy Taskforce 
• 

 Ms. Peterson/Ms. Carter-Gunter 
• Policy Taskforce  Ms. Altman 

   
Board Committee Reports:   
• Finance Committee  Mr. Yates/Mr. Firestine 
• Facilities Committee  Ms. Woody 
• Governance Committee Mr. Sawyer 

   
Unfinished Business 

 
 Ms. Peterson 

 
New Business 

 
 Ms. Peterson 

Adjourn  
 

 Ms. Peterson 

Next Meeting:   
 

Date: October 23, 2024 

Time: 11:45 a.m. 

Location: Hull Street Branch Library 
 1400 Hull Street 
 Richmond, Virginia 23224 
 804.646.8699 

  



Page 3 of 27 
 

 
Library Board Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 

 July 24, 2024 
 
 
PRESENT: Chair Christine Peterson, Vice Chair Sheron Carter-Gunter, Emily Altman, Brent Graves, Garrett Sawyer, 

Janet Woody, William Yates, Gail Zwirner 
 
ABSENT:  Friends of the Library Chair Ruth DeBoer 
 
STAFF: Scott Firestine, Clay Dishon, Attorney Shannan Fitzgerald, Gianna Pack, Cheryl Clarke, Susan Revere, 

Louis Maranski, Phil Shephard 
 
Meeting of the Richmond Public Library (RPL) Library Board of Trustees (LBOT) was called to order by 
Chair William Yates at 11:45AM at the Ginter Park Branch Library located at 1200 Westbrook Avenue, Richmond, Virginia 
23227. The meeting was posted, and the public could attend in person or by viewing the Richmond Public Library YouTube 
channel https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U, where it was live streamed.  A quorum was established. 
 
Governance Chair 
 
Emily Altman 
 

After Chair Yates called the meeting to order, he turned the meeting over to the Governance 
Chair Emily Altman to begin the voting process for the new Chair and Vice Chair for a 2-year 
term to begin July 2024-June 2026 (By-Laws Article IV. Officers, Section 2). 
 
Approve Christine Peterson as Chair of the Library Board of Trustees for a term of two years 
to begin July 2024-June 2026. 
Motion: William Yates, Second by Brent Graves 
 
AYES:   6     NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Approved Unanimously. 
(Mr. Sawyer was not present for the vote.) 
 
 
Approve reappointment of Sheron Carter-Gunter as Vice Chair of the Library Board of 
Trustees for a term of two years to begin July 2024-June 2026. 
Motion: Christine Peterson, Second by Janet Woody 
 
AYES:   6     NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Approved Unanimously. 
(Mr. Sawyer was not present for the vote.) 
 
Committee Chairs will remain in place. 
 

Agenda Approve the July 24, 2024, Agenda as submitted. 
Motion: Garrett Sawyer, Second by William Yates 
 
AYES:   7     NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Approved Unanimously.  
 

Consent Agenda  Approve the June 26, 2024, Meeting Minutes, the Current Financial Reports, Statistical 
Reports, and Donations Report as submitted: 
Motion: Sheron Carter-Gunter, Second by Garrett Sawyer 
 
AYES:   7     NOES: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Approved Unanimously. 

Public Comment 
Period 

No formal Public Comment.   

  

https://bit.ly/2VfKL9U


Page 4 of 27 
 

REPORTS 
Friends of the Library 
(FOL)  
 
Clay Dishon 
Ruth DeBoer 
 
  

Mr. Dishon reported on the Friends of the Library (FOL) operations in Ms. DeBoer’s absence: 

• The Friends of the Library do not meet in the month of July. 

• August 7:  Board Meeting at the Main Library. 

• Pending a full Friends Board vote, the Friends will give a gift to the library in the amount 
of $39,217.10. 

• September 14:  Book Drive. 

• November 1, 2, and 3: Fall Book Sale. 

• November 1:  Friends Annual Meeting. 

Library Foundation  
 
Susan Revere 
Scott Firestine  

Foundation Update:  Ms. Revere thanked those members who were able to attend the July 13 
Memory Lab Open House. She offered a personal tour which can be given by 
Library/Community Services Manager Ben Himmelfarb, Senior Librarian/Special 
Collections Chloe McCormick, or the new Community Memory Fellow Marvin Hicks and 
can be scheduled by calling 804.646.2559. 
 
Grants: 
 

Awarded: 
On June 27, the Foundation was notified of its first grant award through the Virginia 
Commission for the Arts, in partnership with the Virginia American Revolution 
250 Commission celebrating a “Revolution of Ideas” and the 250th Anniversary of the 
American Revolution. The grant supports events in the Gellman Concert Series between 
July 1, 2024, and June 30, 2025. This grant is a reimbursement grant, to be paid after 
submission of Gellman Concert Series receipts in June 2025. 
 

Submitted: 
In mid-July 2024, the Foundation submitted a grant request to the Maryland-based 
Jack R. Anderson Foundation. The request is in support of new materials for a “Learning 
through Play” area in the Children’s Area at the Main Library. This is part of a larger, 
comprehensive effort in the coming year to be focused on the Children’s Area at the Main 
Library. Notification of awards occurs in the September/October timeframe with fund 
distribution in early 2025. 
 

Forthcoming: 
• The Herndon Foundation based in Henrico is a new prospect being approached. It is 

related to the Children’s Space at the Main Library. The grant portal will open at the end 
of July.  
 

• The Robins Foundation grant portal opens July 29 for requests related to Early Childhood. 
Previous grants funded a significant part of the RVA Reads expansion this past school 
year. 
 

• Researching other grant opportunities continues. If there is a grant you are aware of that 
you believe the Foundation should know about, please let Ms. Revere know. 
 

• Gelati Celesti: Ms. Revere met with Gelati Celesti owners Tom and Suzy Rosser, 
Marketing Director Becca Lieberman, and Production Manager Molli Updegraff to 
discuss a potential partnership. She is excited to share that Gelati Celesti’s strong interest 
in supporting youth, education, and schools means they will be partnering for National 
Library Card Sign-up month in September.  

  



Page 5 of 27 
 

REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
Administration 
 
Scott Firestine 

Director’s Report:  In addition to the items submitted in this month’s report, Mr. Firestine 
reported on the following: 

• July 3:  Norfolk Library System Tour – Library Director Scott Firestine, Deputy Director 
Clay Dishon, and Library/Community Services Manager Ben Himmelfarb participated.  
Mr. Firestine gave an overview of the Norfolk Library System.  

• Statistics Accomplishments in FY2024:  
• 22% increase in circulation 
• 67% increase in E-Content 
• 30% increase in visitation to the libraries 
• 28% increase in new cards issued  

• September-Library Card Signup Month: 
• Gelati Celesti is going to unveil a limited-edition flavor recognizing the library and 

to be available during the month. 
• Each branch is scheduled to do five pop-up events during the month. 
• In-house promotion 

• Mr. Firestine reminded members they can participate in the United for Libraries Virtual free 
event on July 30-August 1.  The event’s keynote speaker is Eric Klinenberg, author of Palaces 
for the People.  Mr. Firestine encouraged members to attend and asked Ms. Revere to resend 
the email with the information. 

 
Advocacy Task Force 
 
Garrett Sawyer  
Sheron Carter-Gunter 
 

Mr. Sawyer presented a draft copy of July/August Advocacy letter for feedback. After 
discussion, Mr. Sawyer said he would update the letter and add the statistics that were 
mentioned in the discussion.  Members could tailor the letter to address their respective 
Councilmember and/or district.  Ms. Pack will distribute the letter via email. 

Chair Report 
 
Christine Peterson  

No formal report. 
 
Ms. Peterson speaking on behalf of the LBOT, thanked Mr. Yates for his leadership role as 
Chair.  She also mentioned she was excited to fill the role moving forward. 
 
Ms. Peterson mentioned she will be working with Ms. Altman on Committee assignments, 
then talking to each member about their assignments. 
  

Finance Chair 
 
Garrett Sawyer 
Scott Firestine  

Mr. Firestine reported kicking off the beginning of the fiscal year and closing out the end of 
the last fiscal year. The FY24 Operating Budget on page 17 of the Board Packet shows how 
the department wrapped up with some funds not expended by the time the report was 
generated (one additional payroll and rollover items).  Page 19 shows the FY25 Operating 
Budget.   
 
The Audit will begin in August.  The FY26 budget process will begin the September/October 
timeframe once the audit is complete. 
 
Mr. Firestine announced City Council was having an Advance Meeting on July 25-26 to be 
held at Lewis Ginter Botanical Garden’s Kelly Education Center Auditorium, to discuss 
Strategic Planning on budget priorities and legislative agenda items.  
 
  



Page 6 of 27 
 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:37PM by unanimous consent from the members that were 
present. 
 
Since there is no meeting in August, the next meeting of the LBOT will be held on Wednesday, September 25, 2024, at the 
Main Library located at 101 E. Franklin Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. 
 
      
 
 Approved:       
                 Christine Peterson, Chair 
Recorder: Gianna Pack, CAP 
Senior Executive Assistant  



Page 7 of 27 
 

Director’s Report 
August-September 2024 
 
Director Activities: 

 
Jul 30-Aug 1 United for Libraries Conference 2024 – Virtual  
Aug 1 Mayor Levar Stoney – Interviewed by Community Memory Fellow Marvin Hicks/Monuments Project 
Aug 3 Summer Reading Finale – SOAR Park365 
Aug 7 Friends of the Library Full Board Meeting – Main Library 
Aug 9  CALD Meeting – Amelia County 
Aug 15 LBOT Discussion w/Christine Peterson – Main Library 
Aug 22 Virginia Freedom of Information Act Training – Virtual  
Aug 28 RPL Foundation Executive Committee Meeting – Virtual  
Aug 29 RPL/LBOT and RPL Foundation Discussion – Virtual  
Sep 2 Labor Day Holiday – All Offices Closed 
Sep 4 RPL Friend of the Library Board Meeting – Main Library 
Sep 6 Priorities Discussion w/LBOT Chair Christine Peterson – Main Library 
Sep 9 Informal and Council Meetings – Virtual/Council Chambers 
Sep 11 RPL Foundation Board Meeting – Main Library 

 
Hiring: 

o August-September 2024 Hiring Update: 
• 0089 FT Librarian, Senior – Main Library – Posting Phase 
• 0059 FTE Library Technician, Senior – Hull Street Branch Library – Interview Phase 
• 03TEMP00126 PT Office Assistant/Courier – Main Library – Candidate Selection Phase 
• 03M0000TEMP PT Library Associate/Memory Lab – Main Library – Candidate Selection Phase  
• 0011 PTE Library Technician – West End Branch Library – Candidate Selection Phase 

 
o New Hires/Locations: 

• Jessie Meager – 0017 PTE Library Technician, Ginter Park Branch Library – on July 29 
• Mary Withers – 0010 PTE Library Technician, Westover Hills Branch Library – on September 23 

 
o Departures: 

• Ibraheem Masood – Mayor’s Fellow Program Internship/Special Collections ended July 26 
• Cameron Mayfield – Mayor’s Fellow Program Internship/Graphics ended July 26 
• Charlie Sykes – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Brianna Levine – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Mia Nelson – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Mercedes Lingle – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Taniah Johnson – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Keshra Fedrick – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Wesley Huffman – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Sophia Ridolphi – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Tanasha Searls – Summer Reading Program Internship ended August 9 
• Raven Wilkes – 0011 PTE Library Technician, West End Branch resigned August 9 
• Margaret Raymond – 0089 Librarian, Senior, Main Library resigns/retires October 4 

 
Belmont Closing:  Belmont Library was forced to close on August 26, 2024, at 3PM due to the failure of the HVAC system. 
Unfortunately, the system outage coincided with 90-degree weather throughout the week. Staff were reassigned to other 
locations and worked to reroute patron holds to minimize delay during the closure. Parts had to be ordered and the system 
was repaired on August 29. The library was able to reopen on August 30. 
  



Page 8 of 27 
 

Director’s Report (Continued) 
August-September 2024 
 
 
Outreach and Engagement Update: 
 
The Outreach and Engagement Team kicked off August with the Richmond Public School Summerfest all ages event at 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Middle School where they were able to connect with around 350 attendees. The remainder of the 
month was focused mostly on back-to-school events including festivals at Stony Point Fashion Park and Riverview Baptist 
Church, Back to School Nights at Westover Hills Elementary and Woodville Elementary, and orientations and Boushall 
and Albert Hill Middle Schools. The team also attended National Night Out events at Westover Hills United Methodist 
Church and Westwood Playground.  
 
Finally, the team was able to host a library card sign up table at VCU’s Cabell Library for their Welcome Week. In all, 
1,200 people were met during the August outreach events.  
 
 
Youth Services Update: 

• Youth Services is picking up Fall Programming with new LEGO clubs, STEAM programs, and Storytimes.  

• Being concise about how programs are planned for ages 0-18 adding additional monthly programs now that we have 
the staff to cover. 

• Youth Services staff is also working on going out to schools and community events in September for Back-to-School 
Events and Library Card Sign Up Month programs.  

• Library Card Applications were distributed to all Preschool and Kindergarten classrooms in Richmond Public Schools 
to get them all library cards. The schools will hand them out, collect them, and call the Youth Services Department. 
Library/Community Services Beth Morris will pick up the Library Card Applications and create the cards to return to 
the schools. 

 
Early Literacy Update: 
Early Literacy is starting its new 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten Program starting September 1.  This is a nationwide 
initiative that encourages parents and caregivers to regularly read with their babies, toddlers, and preschoolers.  Sign up is 
easy.  All they must do is start filling out a reading log.  Once they read 100 books, they will receive a Ripple nametag that 
will go up on a display in the branch to track their progress. 
 
Young Adult Services Update: 
Youth Services at the Main Library is working on redesigning the Young 
Adult Space to add more room for study, collaboration, socialization, and 
programming. 
  
Senior Librarian Genevievre Gray and Ms. Morris have removed shelving 
from the large area to the right of Adult Nonfiction, and Ms. Gray has 
created a layout plan for the new space. The library will be:  
• Adding new carpet 
• Moving the Young Adult shelving to better enclose the space and 

separate it from the Children’s area 
• Purchasing a variety of new furniture to accommodate various needs 
• Adding power to the space to allow for laptop use and independent 

study 
• Creating a more functional and welcoming environment for both 

young adults and new adults  



Page 9 of 27 
 

Director’s Report (Continued) 
August-September 2024 
 
 
 
Summer Reading Program 2024 Wrap Up: 
 
The Richmond Public Library’s Summer Reading Program of 2024 was a resounding success, marked by increased 
participation, expanded programming, and strengthened community partnerships.  Key highlights include a significant boost 
in enrollment, the successful integration of summer interns, the growth of the Annual RIPPLECON event, and the expansion 
of various programs and workshops: 

1. Record Participation:  Participation numbers increased from 2,346 in 2023 to 3,581 in 2024. That is an increase 
of 1,235 youth who did something with the library this summer for a 52.6% increase. 

• Prizes were for ages 0-4 (Read to Me) was a Reading Plushie Buddy and a Book.  
• Ages 5-12 received an Adventure Pack (disposable camera, notebook, pencil, pencil sharpener, mini 

flashlight, mini magnifying glass, collapsible water bottle, and field guides of animal tracks and Flowers of 
Virginia.  

• Ages 13-18 received a Bigger collapsible water bottle, stickers, and a phone magnet for selfies and videos. 

2. Intern Program Growth:  The Summer Intern Program expanded, providing valuable learning opportunities for 
inters and contributing to increased programming capacity. We started this Intern Program in the summer of 2023 
with two Interns. The pilot worked well, and we were able to increase our number of Interns to 10. In 2024, each 
Branch location had an Intern working with the Youth Librarian, and the Main Library had two Interns. The Interns 
were able to learn how to do storytimes, help with STEAM programs, be a part of RIPPLECON, and learn basic 
library jobs. Not only did it give the Interns more skills to add to their resumes, but it also allowed for Richmond 
Public Library to increase the number of storytimes and programs for our youth. 

3. RIPPLECON:  The 2nd Annual RIPPLECON event was a huge success. We increased our numbers from 
201 visitors to 368 visitors. There were two famous voice over actors, Jordan Dash Cruz and Kelsey Cruz, as special 
guests. We also had 35 local vendors, workshops, panel talks, and of course, a CosPlay Contest with prizes.  

4. Expanded Programming: Programs were significantly increased across all nine library locations: 
• Each branch was able to add multiple storytimes each week 
• STEAM programs went from 1-2 a month to 1-2 a week (total for all STEAM:  2,191 participants)  
• Teeny Tiny Farm:  602 participants 
• Virginia State Parks:  314 participants 
• Teen Art:  86 participants 
• Mad Science:  180 participants 

5. Successful Partnerships:  Collaborations with local organizations like Teeny Tiny Farm, Virginia State Park 
Rangers, and Mad Science enriched the program offerings.  The library’s partnership with Brigette Newbery, 
Children’s Museum, EXCeLL, VPM, VMFA, VMHC, RVA LUG, and all the local vendors fostered strong 
community connections. 

6. Lift Off to Kindergarten:  This program helped prepare young children for their transition to kindergarten.  The 
program went to the Main Library, the North Avenue Branch Library, and the Broad Rock Branch Library this year. 
There was a total of 65 upcoming kindergarteners who came with their families to learn about kindergarten and 
what they can do to get ready. The Fun Bus came out to that event as the Physical Education part of “school”. 

 
Overall, the 2024 Summer Reading Program was a testament to the Richmond Public Library’s commitment to providing 
enriching experiences for youth and strengthening its role as a community hub. 
 
  



Page 10 of 27 
 

Director’s Report (Continued) 
August-September 2024 
 
 
Read Up Richmond Update (Mark Your Calendars): This year’s program will be Sunday, October 13 at 2:00P at the 
Main Library.  Read Up Richmond 2024 features Dolen Perkins-Valdez, author of Take My Hand, in conversation with 
Linda Janet Holmes. Take My Hand is inspired by true events and is a profoundly moving novel about an African American 
nurse in post-segregation Alabama who blows the whistle on a terrible wrong done to her patients. Their conversation will 
be followed by a Q&A period. Work from both authors will be available for purchase at the library and a signing will be 
held after the main event. 

 
Ms. Perkins-Valdez is a three-time nominee for a United States Artists Fellowship and is currently Associate Professor in 
the Literature Department at American University. She lives in Washington, DC with her family. 
 
Ms. Holmes is an award-winning writer, biographer, oral historian, curator, and long-time women’s health and birthing 
justice activist. 
 

 
Things to Celebrate:  Stories from our locations of things to celebrate that happened during the month. 

• Broad Rock Branch Library:  A Spanish-speaking patron came to the library because she had tried to go to the school 
to change her daughter’s address and enrollment without success. They sent her to another school, which sent her back 
to the first school. Even the Welcome Center could not help her and told her to submit her forms online. 
Library/Community Services Manager Heather Montgomery tried to help the lady submit the forms online and 
discovered that the school she was moving to was supposed to help her complete the forms.  Ms. Montgomery called 
the new school, and they told her do the forms online, which was next to impossible. Eventually, Ms. Montgomery and 
the lady went to the school together.  Ms. Montgomery was able to help the lady get her daughter’s address changed.  

• East End Branch Library: One of our regular patrons has been unhoused for quite some time. In mid-August, staff 
connected him with a specialist at the Daily Planet, who has since helped him find a place to live!   

• Ginter Park Branch Library:  A patron came in needing help to print out an important document and fax it. We 
walked the patron through the steps and ensured that he was successful and satisfied. When everything was completed, 
the patron asked how much he owed for the fax and when we told him the fax was free, he said “Wow, libraries are 
amazing.” He left saying if he needed to do something like that again, he would come to the library first. 

• North Avenue Branch Library:  We had a patron use the eviction defense kit to help fight an unlawful eviction with 
their living space. They reported that it helped tremendously in fighting their case and maintaining housing. 

• West End Branch Library: The return of Tech Tuesdays has been welcomed by the community. Two patrons 
expressed sincere gratitude for the extended time that staff spent with them on cell phone questions. The ability to 
schedule a one-on-one appointment with staff is an extra bonus plus walk-ins are always welcome! 

• Westover Hills Branch Library: A young lady was browsing the Young Adult (YA) area in its new location. She 
looked a little uninspired, so Library/Community Services Manager Danielle Tarullo asked if she wanted suggestions. 
After a brief chat, she shared that her mother was in the hospital nearby, and after hours of sitting, she looked up the 
closest library to find a book to read. Ms. Tarullo gave suggestions that she thought would be funny and immersive, the 
kind you can lose yourself in when you need to. One book was a funny graphic novel with heart, the other a YA fantasy 
that has immersive world-building with a few good twists. She stopped to thank me before leaving, checking out one 
of the books I had suggested. The next day the young lady returned one of the books and made a point of stopping to 
say how comforting the library was for her. 



Page 11 of 27 
 

Insert Circulation Report 
 
 

CIRCULATION FY25 

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 

Belmont 

FY22   10,105    7,973    7,528    7,249    7,173    6,764    7,283    7,235    7,934    7,118    7,967    7,424    91,753  
FY23     8,400    9,297    8,586    8,967    7,642    6,982    8,312    8,167    9,161    8,345    8,716    9,056  101,631  
FY24     9,417    9,967    9,066    9,340    8,224    7,515    9,085    8,454    8,780    9,182    9,140    9,329  107,499  
FY25     9,655    8,891                        18,546  

  

Broad Rock 

FY22     2,105    2,733    2,315    2,073    1,945    1,579    1,545    1,502    1,667    1,624    1,641    1,581    22,310  
FY23     1,886    2,413    2,106    1,977    1,721    1,531    1,758    1,807    2,330    2,290    2,080    1,884    23,783  
FY24     1,897    1,953    1,950    2,106    1,836    1,828    2,008    2,135    2,556    2,417    2,229    2,415    25,330  
FY25     2,543    2,564                         5,107  

  

East End 

FY22     2,519    2,799    3,073    3,039    3,149    2,993    3,230    2,928    2,992    2,897  3061   2,830    35,510  
FY23     2,898    3,313    2,951    2,837    2,246    1,990    2,671    2,600    2,487    2,526    2,519    2,451    31,489  
FY24     2,952    3,044    2,307    2,215    2,041    1,988    2,534    2,742    2,961    2,967    3,003    3,038    31,792  
FY25     3,418    2,890                          6,308  

  

Ginter Park 

FY22     4,175    4,452    4,292    3,990    3,754    3,074    3,671    3,585    4,340    3,877    4,015    4,821    48,046  
FY23     4,607    4,802    4,463    4,174    3,610    3,612    4,283    3,728    4,660    4,232    3,889    4,525    50,585  
FY24     4,819    4,795    4,104    3,878    3,733    3,391    4,214    3,947    4,242    3,943    4,241    4,733    50,040  
FY25     5,575    5,005                        10,580  

  

Hull Street 

FY22     1,884    2,141    1,986    2,144    2,014    2,475    2,397    2,324    2,634    2,361    2,065    2,046    26,471  
FY23     1,987    2,359    2,346    2,331    1,895    1,822    2,069    2,073    2,049    2,272    2,233    1,930    25,366  
FY24     2,386    2,461    2,030    2,359    2,470    2,137    2,281    2,059    1,870    1,849    1,777    2,036    25,715  
FY25     2,123    2,120                          4,243  

  

Main 

FY22     6,925    7,554    6,708    6,748    6,810    6,026    6,904    7,269    8,068    6,675    6,442    6,757    82,886  
FY23     7,932    9,457    8,777    8,957    7,149    6,313    8,304    8,189    9,523    8,891    9,053    8,341  100,886  
FY24     9,347    9,863    9,016    9,344    7,839    7,022    7,933    8,265    9,416    9,041    8,665    8,386  104,137  
FY25     8,724    9,236                        17,960  

  
  



Page 12 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 

CIRCULATION FY25 (CONTINUED) 

LOCATION FY JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 

North Avenue 

FY22     2,003    2,229    2,141    2,241    2,041    1,724    1,755    1,850    2,256    1,825    1,783    1,706    23,554  
FY23     2,139    2,118    2,085    2,378    2,367    1,743       949         77          -            -         226    1,005    15,087  
FY24     1,638    2,294    2,259    2,390    1,998    1,943    2,392    2,108    2,011    2,119    2,358    2,748    26,258  
FY25     2,943    2,899                          5,842  

  

West End 

FY22   12,036  12,125  11,087  10,998    9,998    9,073  10,369  10,305  11,090  10,253  11,113  12,224  130,671  
FY23   13,150  13,412  10,950  11,072  10,121    8,552  10,395    9,966  10,771  10,338  10,968  11,745  131,440  
FY24   12,573  12,176  10,311  10,507    9,828    8,881  10,400  10,328  10,789  11,027  11,457  12,216  130,493  
FY25   13,977  12,956                        26,933  

  

Westover Hills 

FY22     7,604    8,163    7,214    8,653    7,649    6,836    7,650    6,983    7,908    7,144    7,833    7,803    91,440  
FY23     8,424    8,612    8,155    8,407    7,765    6,496    7,540    7,706    8,344    7,423    7,463    8,703    95,038  
FY24   10,057    9,438    8,550    8,313    7,733    7,198    7,721    8,131    8,432    8,196    8,131    9,168  101,068  
FY25   10,085    9,495                        19,580  

  

E-Content 

FY22   12,630  13,139  11,175  10,431  11,019  11,061  13,230  11,146  11,981  12,939  14,980  14,655  148,386  
FY23   16,079  16,510  14,806  14,910  15,126  16,515  19,182  17,810  23,496  24,317  24,593  24,071  227,415  
FY24   25,640  27,387  26,401  27,051  26,710  27,809  34,405  35,378  37,274  36,890  37,078  39,698  381,721  
FY25   41,178  40,652                        81,830  

  

Totals 

FY22   61,986  63,308  57,519  57,566  55,552  51,605  58,034  55,127  60,870  56,713  60,900  61,847  701,027  
FY23   67,502  72,293  65,225  66,010  59,642  55,556  65,463  62,123  72,821  70,634  71,740  73,711  802,720  
FY24   80,964  82,302  66,928  68,163  64,188  62,197  73,888  75,093  79,551  78,449  78,939  84,438  895,100  
FY25 100,221  96,708          -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -    196,929  

  
 
 
 
 
  



Page 13 of 27 
 

Insert Programs 
 

PROGRAMS FY2025 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-
24 

Oct-
24 

Nov-
24 Dec-24 Jan-

25 
Feb-
25 

Mar-
25 

Apr-
25 

May-
25 

Jun-
25 

TOTAL 
FY25 

TOTAL 
FY24 

Belmont                              
Adult Programs 13 14                     27 122 

Adult Attend 51 87                     138 331 
Young Adult Programs 2 1                     3 12 

Young Adult Attend 3 4                     7 10 
Juvenile Programs 19 13                     32 196 

Juvenile Attend 309 200                     509 3,067 
Total Attend 363 291 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 654 3,408 

Total Programs 34 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 330 
Broad Rock                              

Adult Programs 7 13                     20 65 
Adult Attend 136 616                     752 193 

Young Adult Programs 7 3                     10 75 
Young Adult Attend 34 4                     38 115 
Juvenile Programs 31 34                     65 219 

Juvenile Attend 62 217                     279 928 
Total Attend 232 837 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,069 1,236 

Total Programs 45 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 95 359 
East End                             

Adult Programs 6 8                     14 88 
Adult Attend 166 63                     229 718 

Young Adult Programs 12 10                     22 65 
Young Adult Attend 63 42                     105 412 
Juvenile Programs 29 18                     47 93 

Juvenile Attend 290 173                     463 2,189 
Total Attend 519 278 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 797 3,319 

Total Programs 47 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83 246 
  



Page 14 of 27 
 

PROGRAMS FY2025 
(Continued)  

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-
24 

Oct-
24 

Nov-
24 Dec-24 Jan-

25 
Feb-
25 

Mar-
25 

Apr-
25 

May-
25 

Jun-
25 

TOTAL 
FY25 

TOTAL 
FY24 

Ginter Park                              
Adult Programs 13 11                     24 61 

Adult Attend 76 56                     132 302 
Young Adult Programs 9 6                     15 7 

Young Adult Attend 17 8                     25 0 
Juvenile Programs 21 21                     42 123 

Juvenile Attend 146 142                     288 895 
Total Attend 239 206 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 445 1,197 

Total Programs 43 38 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 81 191 
Hull Street                              

Adult Programs 4 4                     8 26 
Adult Attend 9 76                     85 245 

Young Adult Programs 7 1                     8 13 
Young Adult Attend 12 3                     15 81 
Juvenile Programs 11 4                     15 62 

Juvenile Attend 221 66                     287 979 
Total Attend 242 145 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 387 1,305 

Total Programs 22 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 31 101 
Main                              

Adult Programs 22 21                     43 137 
Adult Attend 237 217                     454 2,714 

Young Adult Programs 3 0                     3 3 
Young Adult Attend 42 0                     42 28 
Juvenile Programs 33 21                     54 196 

Juvenile Attend        
1,090         344                      1,434 3,360 

Total Attend 1,369 561 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,930 6,102 
Total Programs 58 42 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 336 

  



Page 15 of 27 
 

PROGRAMS FY2025 
(Continued)  

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-
24 

Oct-
24 

Nov-
24 Dec-24 Jan-

25 
Feb-
25 

Mar-
25 

Apr-
25 

May-
25 

Jun-
25 

TOTAL 
FY25 

TOTAL 
FY24 

North Avenue                             
Adult Programs 3 3                     6 34 

Adult Attend 18 20                     38 364 
Young Adult Programs 2 3                     5 3 

Young Adult Attend 22 15                     37 8 
Juvenile Programs 14 15                     29 29 

Juvenile Attend 280 162                     442 455 
Total Attend 320 197 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 517 827 

Total Programs 19 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 66 
West End                             

Adult Programs 7 8                     15 68 
Adult Attend 36 40                     76 629 

Young Adult Programs 2 0                     2 12 
Young Adult Attend 4 0                     4 117 
Juvenile Programs 21 11                     32 145 

Juvenile Attend 469 174                     643 2,534 
Total Attend 509 214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 723 3,280 

Total Programs 30 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49 225 
Westover Hills                             

Adult Programs 5 8                     13 13 
Adult Attend 59 73                     132 62 

Young Adult Programs 5 2                     7 12 
Young Adult Attend 30 4                     34 129 
Juvenile Programs 19 17                     36 76 

Juvenile Attend 449 416                     865 3,546 
Total Attend 538 493 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,031 3,737 

Total Programs 29 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 56 101 

Grand Total Attend 4,331 3,222 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,553 23,192 

Grand Total Programs 327 270 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 597 1,876 

 
  



Page 16 of 27 
 

Insert Door Count 
DOOR COUNT 
FY2024 Jul-24 Aug-

24 
Sep-
24 Oct-24 Nov-

24 
Dec-
24 Jan-25 Feb-

25 
Mar-
25 Apr-25 May-

25 
Jun-
25 TOTAL 

Belmont   4,511    3,500                        
Broad Rock   4,950    5,649                        
East End   6,348    5,387                        
Ginter Park   4,530    4,512                        
Hull Street   3,093    2,773                        
Main 14,829  15,511                        
North Avenue   4,123    7,682                        
West End   4,235    4,193                        
Westover Hills   4,498    5,562                        

TOTALS FY25: 51,117  54,769              105,886  
TOTALS FY24: 39,382  46,969  32,640  45,796  32,816  35,874  42,622  46,082  46,907  56,662  54,040  52,146    531,936  
TOTALS FY23: 44,405  45,027  38,340  37,779  31,237  29,286  29,662  29,786  30,609  32,727  26,813  34,076    409,747  

 
 
Insert New Patron Cards 

NEW PATRON CARDS 
FY2025 JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 

Belmont    141     119                                 260  
Broad Rock      69       95                                 164  
East End      61       44                                 105  
Ginter Park      61       59                                 120  
Hull Street      72       81                                 153  
Main    222     390                                 612  
North Avenue     43       44                                   87  
West End    105       90                                 195  
Westover Hills    105  94                                199  
Online Reg E-Card    666     699                              1,365  

Total FY25: 1,545  1,715                   3,260  
Total FY24: 1,526  1,689  1,492  1,768  1,668  1,200  1,924  1,581  1,655  1,595  1,510  1,534       19,142  
Total FY23: 1,334  1,498  1,366  1,217  1,035     917  1,343  1,270  1,167  1,171  1,301  1,330        14,949  

 
  



Page 17 of 27 
 

Insert Computer Use 
 
 

COMPUTER USE 
FY2025 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 TOTAL 

Belmont Workstation 690  628                      1,318  
WIFI 863  846                      1,709  

Broad Rock Workstation 724  782                      1,506  
WIFI 1,064  1,144                      2,208  

East End Workstation 661  635                      1,296  
WIFI 1,744  1,859                      3,603  

Ginter Park Workstation 598  608                      1,206  
WIFI 896  858                      1,754  

Hull Street Workstation 453  599                      1,052  
WIFI 874  992                      1,866  

Main Workstation 2,599  2,379                      4,978  
WIFI 5,775  6,194                      11,969  

North Avenue Workstation 598  577                      1,175  
WIFI 883  748                      1,631  

West End Workstation 395  402                      797  
WIFI 1,165  1,294                      2,459  

Westover Hills 
Workstation 590  560                      1,150  

WIFI 615  724                      1,339  

TOTALS FY25: 21,187  21,829               
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    

             
-    43,016  

TOTALS FY24: 16,191  18,566  17,176  18,563  13,735  14,255  16,296  17,267  17,903  18,723  19,691  19,587  207,953  

TOTALS FY23: 13,430  14,930  14,136  14,657  11,832  11,834  13,204  13,045  13,988  13,375  15,025  15,034  164,490  

TOTALS FY22: 7,868  7,453  7,484  10,192  7,706  7,583  8,709  8,046  9,346  10,404  10,819  11,897  107,507  

 
 
  



Page 18 of 27 
 

Technical Services – Floating Items Added/Discarded 
 

TECHNICAL SERVICES - FLOATING ITEMS ADDED / DISCARDED 

FY2025 Printed Materials Added 
(All Branches) 

Overdrive 
Added 

Monthly Total 
Added 

Monthly Total 
Discarded 

Jul-24 1,033  504  1,537  4,804  
Aug-24 1,480  354  1,834  2,107  
Sep-24         
Oct-24         
Nov-24         
Dec-24         
Jan-25         
Feb-25         
Mar-25         
Apr-25         

May-25         
Jun-25         

FY25 Totals: 2,513  858  3,371  6,911  
FY24 Totals: 14,096  5,041  19,137  43,251  
FY23 Totals: 29,114  10,656  39,773  5,565  
FY22 Totals: 17,756  5,387  23,143  2,117  

 
Insert Laptop Checkouts 
 

LAPTOP CHECKOUTS 
FY2025 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-

25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-
25 

May-
25 Jun-25 TOTAL 

Belmont 12 1                     13 
Broad Rock 0 0                     0 
East End 3 3                     6 
Ginter Park 1 3                     4 
Hull Street 5 1                     6 
Main 0 0                     0 
North Avenue 5 1                     6 
West End 6 6                     12 
Westover Hills 3 5                     8 

TOTALS FY25: 35 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55 
 
  



Page 19 of 27 
 

Insert Room Requests 
 

 
 

Nov-24
  

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Jun-25Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded

Reques
ts

Atte
nded Total 

Requests
Total 

Attended
Room Requests FY2025

Belmont 

     Meeting Room (Capacity 15) 7      42       7      55       14             97            

Broad Rock 

     Meeting Room (Capacity 35) 46   407     27   144     73             551          

East End

     Meeting Room (Capacity 35) 14   119     12   29       26             148          

Ginter Park 

     Meeting Room (Capacity 40) 7      17       11   94       18             111          

Hull Street 

     Meeting Room (Capacity 47) 10   143     8      127     18             270          

Main 

     Auditorium (Capacity 250) 28   677     32   1,520 60             2,197       
     Annex (Capacity 45) 21    691      15    306      36             997          
     Activity Room (Capacity 48) 21    180      18    351      39             531          
     Gellman Room (Capacity 80) 22    274      26    577      48             851          
     Memory Lab (Capacity 4) 17    17        16    16        33             33            
     Innovation Lab (Capacity 12) 3      3          6      6          9               9               
     Study Room B (Capacity 6) 79    79        80    157      159           236          
     Study Room C (Capacity 12) 68    187      66    153      134           340          
     Study Room D (Capacity 12) 64    165      60    171      124           336          
     Study Room E (Capacity 6) 66    105      53    91        119           196          

North Avenue

     Meeting Room (Capacity 47) 4      10        6      13        10             23            

West End

     Meeting Room (Capacity 44) 7      84        8      86        15             170          
     Study Room (Capacity 8) 55    69        67    147      122           216          

Westover Hills

     Meeting Room (Capacity 35) 11    40        5      68        16             108          

FY25 Totals: 550 3,309 523 4,111 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,073       7,420      



Page 20 of 27 
 

Insert Operations Budget 

 
 



Page 21 of 27 
 

Insert Monthly Report 

 
 

 



Page 22 of 27 
 

Insert Donations Report 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 23 of 27 
 

Handout: Memory Lab Marketing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  



Page 24 of 27 
 

Article:  Blood Pressure/Libraries 
 

LOCAL NEWS 

How Central Virginia libraries are working to keep the community 
health aware 
 
By: A.J. Nwoko 
Posted at 1:18 PM, Jul 25, 2024 / and last updated 1:18 PM, Jul 25, 2024 
https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news/central-virginia-libraries-blood-pressure-july-25-2024  
 
RICHMOND, Va. --At the Main Street Public Library in Richmond, it’s librarian Meg Raymond’s hope that at least 
one of the thousands of books or publications perched on the shelves will pique someone’s interest. 

 
 “That’s one of the fun parts of my job is to see strangers become regulars,” Raymond said. 
 
Raymond believes there are fewer things people should be more interested in than their health, 
But sometimes access to health services isn’t as simple as checking out a book. 
 
“Libraries have always been health partners for people looking for information.” Raymond said. 
 

That’s why earlier this year the American Heart Association (AHA) formed a partnership with public libraries all 
over central Virginia which aims to make monitoring blood pressure easier than ever with access to blood pressure 
monitoring machines. 
 
According to the AHA, there are thousands of Richmond residents living with high blood pressure and many of 
them are not only unaware that they have it, but also often lack the resources to properly monitor it. 
 
“There are enough Richmond residents with high blood pressure that they could fill up a city GRTC bus 500 times,” 
said AHA Community Impact Vice President Robin Gahan. “Again, many of them don’t even know they have it.” 
 
Cardiothoracic Surgical Associates’ Dr. Chiwon Hahn agrees. The cardiothoracic surgeon says that people are not 
only unaware of their condition, but also are hesitant to seek out necessary help. 
 
“It’s natural for us to try to not want to go to the doctor, to not want to know about health problems, we don’t go to 
the doctor we don’t get things checked out.” said Hahn. “But high blood pressure is something that’s easy to know 
about, easy to deal with easier to take care of.” 
 
Gahan says there are around 35 upper arm automated-validated devices circulating between Richmond’s nine 
branches. The machines can even be checked out like a book for up to two weeks at a time. 
 
“Having the kits allows people to take their blood pressure when they first get up in the morning, when they are 
watching tv,” Raymond said. “People want these things, and the library is a bridge to providing.” 
 
Blood pressure monitoring station can also be found in seven of the nine libraries in the city. 
 
“In that tool kit comes information about how to check it properly… and how to share that information with your 
doctor,” Gahan said. 
 
For people who are uninsured or low income in the Richmond area, Gahan says organizations like Capital Area 
Health Network and the Daily Planet are clinical partners who are ready to support the community and are prepared 
to help people properly manage their blood pressure. 

https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news
https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news/central-virginia-libraries-blood-pressure-july-25-2024
https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news


Page 25 of 27 
 

 
According to the AHA, even if you have difficulty accessing a medical professional doesn’t mean you can’t take 
control of your health now. Small things like taking a 1-minute walk or reducing sodium un your diet can also 
lower blood pressure. 
 
Since the program launched it has expanded beyond Richmond. Gahan says Petersburg Public Library, Appomattox 
regional library system, Louisa County libraries and Charlottesville’s library systems as well as Roanoke are all 
providing their communities access to these devices. 
 
“We focused on communities where 30 percent or more of their know they have high blood pressure,” Gahan said, 
“Nearly half of all U.S adults have high blood pressure so it’s extremely important that we strategically place these 
resources where people are at greatest risk for heart attack or stroke.” 
 
Gahan says part of the reason moving blood pressure is so critical is that people who suffer from it often times show 
no symptoms until a more another life-threatening condition develops. 
 
“It can create vision loss and strain, it can affect your kidneys and effect of course your heart and brain health,” 
Gahan said. “We really want to prevent that from happening because it can cause such challenging aspects for 
folks.” 
 
“As a heart surgeon I see the end stage of people having high blood pressure for years people come in with rupture 
aneurysms and heart attacks, strokes,” Hahn said. 
 
Experts says these serious health conditions can be potentially avoidable when we decide to turn the page from bad 
health habits. 
 
“We are in no way medical professionals, but we are helping people take charge of their own health which is 
something that can only be a good thing,” Raymond said. 
 
For more information on where to locate your nearest library with a blood pressure monitoring device in Richmond 
or to learn more information about monthly health screening conducted at these libraries you can do so 
at rvalibrary.org/your-blood-pressure. 
 

∞  END  ∞ 
 

  

http://rvalibrary.org/your-blood-pressure


Page 26 of 27 
 

Article: Library Card/Gelati Celesti 

 

RICHMOND 

Sign up for Richmond Public Library card for a 
free scoop at Gelati Celesti 
By: Katelyn Harlow 
Posted: Aug 27, 2024 / 01:12 PM EDT 
Updated: Aug 27, 2024 / 01:17 PM EDT 
https://www.wric.com/Sign up for Richmond Public Library card for a free scoop at Gelati Celesti | WRIC ABC 8News 
 
 
RICHMOND, Va. (WRIC) — Are you a Richmond area resident without a Richmond Public Library card? If you 
sign up in September, you not only can get access to library resources, but also a coupon for free ice cream. 
 
In a collaboration between the library system and Gelati Celesti, a new, exclusive flavor was created, called 
“Ripple’s Choco-lit Cherry Pie,” which will be available at stores beginning on Sept. 1 for Library Card Sign-up 
Month. 
 
The ice cream — named after the library’s mascot, a river otter — was taste-tested and named by library patrons, 
featuring chocolate ice cream blended with Bing cherries and pie crust pieces.  
 
Beginning Sept. 1, if you sign up for a Richmond Public Library card, you’ll receive a bookmark and a coupon for a 
free scoop at any Richmond area Gelati Celesti shop until July 31, 2025, though the deal is only taking place while 
supplies last. 
 

(Photo: Katelyn Harlow/8News) 
 
In addition to physical books and eBooks, a library card gets you access to streaming 
services like Kanopy, which offers a variety of movies, series and shows. 
 
A library card also gets you access to research resources, like JSTOR, as well as items 
for checkout, like a pass to the Science Museum of Virginia and blood pressure kits. 
 
For more information about Richmond Public Library, visit its website. 

 
 

∞  END  ∞ 
 

 
 

  

https://www.wric.com/
https://www.wric.com/news/local-news/richmond/sign-up-for-richmond-public-library-card-for-a-free-scoop-at-gelati-celesti/
https://rvalibrary.org/


Page 27 of 27 
 

Article: On-line Video September Library Card Sign-Up Month 
 

 

LOCAL NEWS 

https://www.facebook.com/share/v/x8f5hEM84dTaPXEv/?mibextid=SphRi8 
facebook.com 
Last Update: September 4, 2024 / 9:18AM video 
 
Kristen Luehrs – WTVR CBS 6 is chatting with Richmond Public Library’s Director Scott Firestine at the 
East End Branch Library on September 4, 2024, about how to sign up for a library card, and all the 
awesome things the library offers. 
 
While she was there, Ripple stopped in to visit. 
 

 
 
 

∞  END  ∞ 

https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news
https://www.facebook.com/share/v/x8f5hEM84dTaPXEv/?mibextid=SphRi8
https://www.wtvr.com/news/local-news

	Wednesday, September 25, 2024
	11:45 a.m.
	A G E N D A

	0BPublic Comment Period:  
	1BReports:
	 2BLibrary Friends 
	 3BLibrary Foundation 
	 Library Administration
	 Main Library Update by LCSM
	 Advocacy Taskforce
	 7BVVChair Report
	 Policy Taskforce
	5BBoard Committee Reports:
	 7BFinance Committee
	 8BFacilities Committee
	Unfinished Business
	 North Avenue Branch Library:  We had a patron use the eviction defense kit to help fight an unlawful eviction with their living space. They reported that it helped tremendously in fighting their case and maintaining housing.
	LOCAL NEWS
	LOCAL NEWS


